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	Civil Action No. _________________
COMPLAINT


Plaintiffs, as for their complaint against Defendants, allege as follows:

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1.
Plaintiffs bring this action for injunctive relief.  Without this Court’s intervention, ________________________ will continue to harass the voters of ______________________________________________________________________, thus hindering the right to vote and artificially reducing voter turnout in their community.  

Plaintiffs seek emergency injunctive relief to protect voters from unfair, underhanded vote suppression efforts.  ________________________________________________

_____________________________________________________________________

JURISDICTION AND VENUE


2.
This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action under 28 U.S.C. § 1331, as a case arising under the laws of the United States; under 28 U.S.C. § 1343(a)(4), as a case seeking equitable and other relief pursuant to an Act of Congress providing for the protection of the right to vote; under 42 U.S.C. § 1973i(b), as a case seeking to halt voter intimidation; and under 42 U.S.C. § 1983, as a case seeking to enforce rights and privileges secured by the laws of the United States.


3.
Venue in this Court is proper because a substantial part of the events giving rise to the Plaintiffs’ claims took place or will take place in this judicial district. 

PARTIES


4.
Plaintiff _________________________________ is a political campaign operating in ___________ where a federal election is being held throughout the State on __________.   

5.
Plaintiffs ___________________________________________________

________________________________________________________ are all registered, eligible voters in either ____________________________________________________

_______________________________________________________________________.

7. Plaintiffs ___________________________________________________ are community organizations.  Organizational Plaintiffs have standing to bring suit on behalf of any of their members who would otherwise have standing to sue in their own right, because the interests at stake here are germane to Plaintiff organizations’ purposes and neither the claim asserted nor the relief requested requires the participation of its members in the lawsuit.  Friends of the Earth, Inc. v. Laidlaw Environmental Services (TOC), Inc., 528 U.S. 167, 120 S. Ct. 693, 711, 145 L.Ed.2d 610 (2000).  
8. Defendant is __________ (a political party organized, operating and functioning as an official political party in the state of ________.) 
FACTS

(In this section, add all verified facts.  If there has been an effort to intimidate minority voters with a flyer or communication sent via mail, describe the facts that led to the flyer or communication.  For example, to the extent known, describe when the mail was sent and to whom.  If voters in only certain areas or precincts were sent the mail, describe such areas.  Attach a copy of any mailer.  The paragraphs listed below and numbered 8-17 were taken from a vote caging complaint filed by the U.S. Dept. of Justice in 1991 and are illustrative of how vote caging allegations can be framed.)  


9.
On October 26 and 29, 1990, as part of the ballot security program, at least 81,000 postcards containing the following language were mailed first-class with “address correction requested” to selected voters throughout the State of North Carolina [hereinafter “first-class mailing”]:
Voter Registration Bulletin

If you moved from your old precinct over 30 days ago, contact the County Board of Elections for instructions for voting on Election day.

When you enter the voting enclosure, you will be asked to state your name, residence and period of residence in that precinct.  You must have lived in that precinct for at least the previous 30 days or you will not be allowed to vote.

It is a Federal crime, punishable by up to five years in jail, to knowingly give false information about your name, residence, or period of residence to an Election Official.

Paid for by the N.C. Republican Party

The return address on the postcard was that of the Defendant North Caroline Republican Party.


10.
The first-class mailing was sent to households with at least one registered Democrat in at least 86 selected precincts throughout the State of North Carolina.  The postcards were mailed to the address under which the voter registration lists maintained by Defendant Jefferson Marketing, Inc., and/or its defendant subsidiaries, and utilized by Defendant North Carolina Republican and Defendant Helms for Senate Committee.


11.
According to the voter registration filed used as a database for the first-class postcard, black voters constituted approximately 94 percent of the registered voters within the targeted precincts.


12.
The voters targeted to receive the first-class mailing were selected, in part, based upon race.


13.
On October 29, 1990, at least 44,000 postcards containing the identical text as the postcard reflected in paragraph __ were mailed bulk rate to selected voters throughout the State of North Carolina [hereinafter “bulk-rate mailing”].  The bulk-rate mailing postcard for this mailing reflected a deliberate decision.

14.
The bulk-rate mailing was sent exclusively to black voters throughout the State of North Carolina, regardless of political party affiliation.  The targeted black voters were selected based upon a data concerning the addresses of registered voters in North Carolina provided to the defendant organizations by a mass mailing business concern.  The data purported to identify more than 260,000 registered voters who had current addresses different from the addresses contained in voter registration lists maintained by Defendant Jefferson Marketing, Inc., and/or its defendant subsidiaries, and utilized by Defendant North Carolina Republican Part and Defendant Helms for Senate Committee.  No postcards were mailed to the over 220,000 white registered voters so identified.  The postcards were mailed to the targeted black voters at the alternative address provided to the defendant organizations, not to the address under which they were registered.


15.
Of the black voters who were identified as having changed residences by the data described in paragraph __, at least 22,000 such voters were identified as having new addresses which were within the county in which they were registered to vote.


16.
The voters targeted to receive the bulk-rate mailing were selected, in part, based upon race.


17.
The text of the postcard, which is set forth in paragraph __, falsely informed voters who were eligible to vote in that election.  Contrary to the text of the postcard:

A.
Voters who move out of the precinct in which they are registered and into another precinct within the county in which they are registered more than 30 days prior to an election are still eligible to vote in that election; and
B.
Voters who move our of the precinct in which they are registered to any other precinct in the State of North Carolina within 30 days of an election are eligible to vote in that election.


18.
The text of the postcard, which is set forth in paragraph __, falsely informed voters that they would be asked at the polling place to state the length of time they have lived at their residence. 
FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION

19.
Plaintiffs re-allege each allegation contained in each of the paragraphs ___ through ___ above, as if fully set forth herein.

20.
The purpose of the mailer described above, was to intimidate and/or threaten minority voters in an effort to deter such voters from exercising their right to vote in the November 4, 2008 general election. 

21.
The mailer described above had the effect of intimidating and/or threatening minority voters concerning their right to vote in the November 4, 2008 general election.


22.
The mailer described above had a reasonable tendency to intimidate and/or threaten minority voters and others concerning their right to vote in the November 4, 2008 general election. 

23.
Defendants’ actions constitute intimidating and/or threatening conduct against minority voters or an attempt to intimidate and/or threaten minority voters, for the purpose of interfering with the right to vote in the November 4, 2008 general election in _____ in violation of 42 § U.S.C. 1971(b).

24.
Defendants’ actions, as described above constitute intimidating and/or threatening conduct against minority voters and other voters in violation of Section II (b) of the Voting Rights Act of 1965, 42 U.S.C. §1973i(b).

25. 
Unless enjoined by this Court, Defendants will continue to engage in actions prohibited by 42 U.S.C. §§ 1971(b) and 1973i(b).
SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION

26.
Plaintiffs re-allege each allegation contained in paragraphs ___ through ___ above, as if fully set forth herein.

27.
The right to vote in a federal election is guaranteed by, inter alia, the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution.  Federal law also provides that “All citizens of the United States who are otherwise qualified by law to vote at any election by the people in any State, Territory, district, county, city, parish, township, school district, municipality, or other territorial subdivision, shall be entitled and allowed to vote at all such elections[.]”  42 U.S.C. § 1971.


28.
The facts alleged herein deprive Plaintiffs of their rights with respect to voting as guaranteed by the First and Fourteenth Amendments to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1971.  They are therefore entitled to injunctive relief. 
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully pray that this Court enter an order:


1.
Assuming jurisdiction over this matter;


2.
Declaring that Defendants’ actions as described above constituted an act of intimidation and/or threat, or an attempt to intimidate and/or threaten, primarily minority voters for the purpose of interfering with their right to vote, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1971(b);

3.
Declaring that Defendants’ actions as described above constituted an act of intimidation and/or threat, or an attempt to intimidate and/or threaten, primarily minority voters for the purpose of interfering with their right to vote, in violation of 42 U.S.C. § 1973i(b);

4.
Enjoining the Defendants, their officers, agents, employees and all persons in active concert with them, from undertaking activities which are designed to intimidate, threaten or coerce voters concerning their right to vote in an election or which are designed to in any way interfere with or discourage lawful exercise of the franchise;
5.
Enjoining the Defendants, their officers, agents, employees, and all persona in active concert with them, from assisting in or participating in an ballot security unless such program has been determined by this Court to comply with Federal law; 

6.
Granting Plaintiffs costs and attorneys’ fees pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988; and

7.
Retaining jurisdiction of this case and granting Plaintiffs such other and further relief as may be appropriate by law.  

	Date: _______
	Respectfully submitted,
_____________________________________

_____________________________________
_____________________________________
_____________________________________
_____________________________________
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